
City of Aurora, Ohio
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

MEETING MINUTES
June 13, 2016

The  Committee of the Whole  of the City of Aurora, Ohio met in Council Chambers at City Hall on  Monday,  
June 13 ,  2016  the purpose of holding a regular public meeting.  Committee  Vice  Chair man   Harold Hatridge   
called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.

ROLL CALL
Present: Reva Barner

Kathi Grandillo
Harold Hatridge
George Horvat
Dennis Kovach
Amy McDougald
James Vaca
Scott Wolf

Absent: John Kudley, Jr.
                         
Also Present: Ann Womer Benjamin, Mayor

Dean DePiero, Law Director
Timothy Clymer, Finance Director
John Trew, Director of Public Services
Denise Januska, Planning and Zoning Director
Karen Aldredge, Chief of Staff
Brian Byard, Police Chief 

                        Donna Hawks, Clerk of Council

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

MOTION: Approval of the May 23, 2016 meeting minutes
Mr. Vaca moved; Ms. Barner seconded. The motion carried on majority voice vote. Mr. Hatridge and Mr. 
Horvat abstained.

NEW BUSINESS
Bid Award – 2016 Delivery and/or Pickup of Crushed Limestone, Washed Gravel & other Materials
Mr. Trew said three bids were submitted and Ontario Stone was the lowest and best bidder on several 
items.  He said the city has used them in the past and they have been a very good provider.

MOTION: Forward to Council for consideration this evening
Ms. McDougald moved; Ms. Grandillo seconded.  The motion carried on a unanimous voice vote.

Appropriation of Funds – Concrete and Curb Repair
Mayor Womer Benjamin  explained  the appropriation  includes adding back $63,000  that  was  taken out the  
$100,000  c oncrete  line to get curbs done on SR43 before the repaving.  She said it was thought that ODOT  
would  be responsible  but they declined and the city had to pay for it.  Mayor Womer Benjamin said after  
s he and Mr. Trew went through much of the city as well as the road rating schedule  it was  determined an 
additional $100,000  is needed  towards concrete road repair this year , making a  total $200,000 in that  
category.



    City of Aurora, Ohio      Page 2                            06/13/16 Committee of the Whole Minutes

Mr. Horvat asked if the $200,000 is additional to what was spent on SR43 and SR82.  Mayor Womer 
Benjamin stated $1.3 million was appropriated this year for paving.  She said $100,000 of that was for 
concrete, the $200,000 concrete budget is separate and apart from the SR43 paving.

MOTION:          To recommend to Council
Mr. Wolf moved; Ms. Grandillo seconded.  The motion carried on a unanimous voice vote.

Employees Generally
Mayor Womer Benjamin said the individual on the employees generally is  an additional part-time  seasonal  
employee for the Parks and Recreation Department

MOTION:      Forward to Council for consideration this evening
Mr. Kovach moved; Ms. Barner seconded.  The motion carried on a unanimous voice vote.

Creating Part-time Position – Transportation Van Driver
Mr. DePiero  explained  the request is  for approval to create the position of a part-time  Transportation Van 
Driver.

MOTION:          Forward to Council for consideration this evening
Ms. McDougald moved; Ms. Grandillo seconded.  The motion carried on unanimous voice vote.

MISCELLANEOUS
Third Year Contract Renewal – Durmark, Inc. – Road Striping Program
Mr. Trew said prices for all three years of the contract were included  with the original  legislation.  He said 
there are no increases in the third year.

Mayor Womer Benjamin said it was recently decided  to  handle  our own  911 calls and  the city  purchase d  a 
new system.  She said there have been ongoing conversations across the county about dispatch services 
being combined in certain areas.  She said Aurora has been approached by multiple communities to 
consider handling their telephone calls.  Mayor Womer Benjamin explained it has gotten expensive for 
some of the smaller communities in Portage County to handle  them .  She said getting requests for that 
consideration has been Streetsboro as well as Aurora and the city is seriously entertaining these requests. 
She said looking at the communities we are negotiating with  our calls  would increase  b y 2,600 a year.  She 
said the city would charge for the service and there are other issues that would have to be worked out.   She 
said Aurora will not lose money ; the intent at the very least is to  cover the expected cost.  She said at the 
state level there is a real push to consolidate these services across the state.  She said the administration 
believes  that  down the road when the pressure becomes greater with respect  to  public service answering 
points and the consolidation of  those points it will benefit aurora to show that we are in fact handling calls 
for multiple communities.  She said she does not see a downside.  She said the contracts would be limited 
so that if for some reason it does not work the city will not do it again.  Mayor Womer Benjamin said she 
feels it is a worthwhile endeavor to explore which Chief Byard is doing.

Ms. McDougald asked regarding road striping if there are any plans to put in bike lanes.

Mayor Womer Benjamin said the roads that are being done this summer; SR43 and SR82 were not suitable 
because of the speed, the size and a variety of factors.  She said Aurora  Hudson to  Bissell  is  being looked at 
for some type of bike lanes to bring people into the center of town.  She said sh e does not know the 
timeframe this but it is on the agenda to continue to look at opportunities for that.

Mr. Wolf asked if the 2,600 calls were per communit y  or is it what  the total  would be  with everyone that 
came on board.



    City of Aurora, Ohio      Page 3                            06/13/16 Committee of the Whole Minutes

Mayor Womer Benjamin said it is the combined calls of the communities being considered.

Mr. Wolf stated for clarification purposes the city owns the equipment and the state cannot take it.

Ms. Barner said it sounds like a great plan and it is always good to be proactive.  She asked if there could be 
any backlash for any reason and also would the city have to hire additional dispatchers.

Chief Byard  stated the state is pushing to consolidate dispatching and this  year  they reduce d  the number of 
answering points in Portage County from five to four ;  next year they want to reduce it to three ;  and the 
following year down to two.  He said the city’s objective is to  take on some of the smaller villages and 
townships that have a minimal number of calls to have a little bit of a strong foothold in the fight later on 
down the road.  He said Aurora  alone  could not take on all of the smaller agenc ies,  but with Streetsboro , 
each   could take half.  He said the 2,600 calls per year divided amongst three shifts are essentially 15 calls 
per day.  Chief Byard provided a breakdown of the calls from the other communities.  He said the plan is to 
bring on two additional part-time dispatchers.  He said currently the department is staffed with double 
dispatch 70% of the time and the plan is to bring that to 100% of the time. Chief Byard stated by providing 
this service it will help offset our cost. He said he anticipates approximately $75,000 added income coming 
in that will pay for the two part-time positions.  He said  the initial plan is for a single year contract and  in 
the event it does not work out we can get out of  it.  Chief Byard stated our officers will not be responding to 
the calls.

Ms. Barner thanked Chief Byard for clarification.  She said it now makes more sense to her.

Mr. Kovach said he is not in favor of this.  He asked what liability goes along with taking this on.

Mr. DePiero said the liability would not increase, the city would have the same defense and immunities set 
forth in the Revised Code.

Mr. Kovach asked how the residents would be affected if there are an overwhelming number calls.

Chief Byard said by adding the double dispatch on a regular basis it will probably benefit the city.  He said 
it will not affect our residents; our officers, paramedics and firefighters will still respond to the same calls 
within the city.

Mr. Kovach asked what will happen to the dispatchers who have job in the other cities.

Chief Byard said most of the calls are handled by the city of Garrettsville and they have decided to get out 
of the dispatching business because they are not a true public safety answering point.  

Mr. Kovach asked which cities Aurora is considering.

Chief Byard replied Hiram Police and Fire, Garrettsville Fire and Community EMS.

Mayor Womer Benjamin clarified the city did not ask for this; they came to us.  She said the city faces the 
possibility by being forced by the State of Ohio and the County to give up our Aurora dispatch services.  She 
said the city dealt with that this past fall.  She said it is believed that the fact that these folks are coming to 
Aurora and we can provide dispatching services to them makes Aurora look stronger as a  continuing   
Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP) down the road and to preserve those services in Aurora.

Mr. Vaca said he is totally against it.  He said he does not like when big government tells you what to do.  He 
said at times dispatch can become very chaotic and does not see how the city can take on other 
communities.  He said he feels the city is being  strong-armed  into this.  He said the city should be allowed 



    City of Aurora, Ohio      Page 4                            06/13/16 Committee of the Whole Minutes

to take care  of and  not worry about  whom  else is out there.   He said the Mayor of this city should be 
objective instead of embracing it; this is wrong; bully ing  by the  c ounty and  s tate level is wrong.  He said he 
strongly objects to it.  

Mr. Wolf asked what the state’s rush  is  now for reducing these points.  He said Aurora is an unfunded  PSAP  
where do they get the right tell Aurora they are not going to answer their own calls.

Chief Byard stated Aurora would remain an unfunded PSAP.  He said the state has been doing this in bigger 
counties and  they  have been forced to disband their dispatch centers and regionalize with other cities.  He 
said by experimenting with this for one year he feels the city has a foothold in the fight so to speak.   

Mr. Wolf said he agrees that it puts us in a better position.  He said he is not willing to take any of this 
nonsense from the state and would rather see the city put away money now to purchase equipment in the 
future and not be dependent on funding from the state.

Mayor Womer Benjamin said  the city paid for their system out of their accumulated 911 funds.  She said 
going forward in next year’s budget we will start putting away money to maintain the equipment.  She said 
the city has established itself to the state as a non-funded PSAP and they will be going it alone and manage 
our own dispatching services.

Mr. Vaca said the villages and the townships should rely on Portage County and no t on  other cities.  He said 
we are not the brother’s keeper of the townships.  He said he does not object to putting money away each 
year for the city’s equipment.

ADJOURNMENT

MOTION: To adjourn
Mr. Kovach moved; Mr. Vaca seconded.   The motion carried on unanimous voice vote.

The meeting was adjourned at 6:54 p.m.

   
          Harold Hatridge, Vice Chairman                                        Donna Hawks, Clerk of Council


